Town of Minnesott Beach

Board of Commissioners’ Meeting
December 10, 2019
Minutes

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday, December 10, 2019 at 7:00 P.M at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

Board members present: Mayor Fowler, Commissioner Adam Garfinkel, Commissioner
Cliff Braly and Commissioner Starr Murphy.

Board members absent: Commissioner Pete Hall.

Others present: Town Manager Carolyn Braly, Town Clerk Donna Scott, David Gaskins,
Kenny Campen, Ron Seegan, Alan Asher, Sue Fowler, Richard Hughes, Sally Covington,
Archer Beezli, Mary Parker and Linda Sanderson.

Mayor Fowler called the meeting to order at 7:00pm with a moment of silence and led
everyone in the pledge of allegiance to the flag.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to November 12, 2019 minutes.
Commissioner Garfinkel moved to approve the minutes, All ayes.

Swearing in of the newly elected Mayor and Comimissioners:

Carolyn Braly, Notary Public, administered the oath of office to Mayor Tim Fowler.
Mayor Fowler administered the oath of office to the commissioners: Cliff Braly, Kenny
Campen, Adam Garfinkel and David Gaskins.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to the December 10, 2019 agenda.
Commissioner Garfinkel moved to accept the agenda as presented. All ayes.

Public Comments:

Starr Murphy, former commissioner, congratulated the board on their election. She thanked
everyone for their support as commissioner and wished the new board success. Mrs. Murphy
asked the board to meet with the Town’s attorney regarding the purchase of Minnesott Golf
and Country Club. She expressed concerns about turning the club property, if it ceases to
operate as a golf club, into a park. She said there have been two drug arrests in Minnesott
Beach Mobile Home Court last week. She said, unfortunately, that’s the kind of people
found in a public park.

Ron Seegan asked the commissioners to consider making a “dog park™ on some of the
Town’s property. He said he thought the residents would welcome a place for their dogs to
run.

Alan Asher congratulated the Mayor and Commissioner on their election. He said he felt it
was important to the Town to purchase the Minnesott Golf & Country Club property. He
said the public hearing held in July there were over 100 folks in attendance with remarks
from 25. 80% of those present were in favor of purchasing the club property. Mr, Asher said

as long as the golf club is operating, there is no cost to the Town for insurance. It is a great

12/1%/2019 BOC meeting 1



price for the property with buildings that can be used to benefit the residents. He said there is
crime and drugs everywhere.

Commissioner Campen asked for all comments to be positive and not to direct any negative
comments to any individual.

Sally Covington said the trailer park is not the only area of concern. She said she’d like to
have Minnesott Beach patrolled more frequently by the sheritf’s department. She said folks
are coming in to the driving range area at all times of the night. When she has called the
deputies, they have been very responsive.

Agenda Items for discussion and possible motion or action

Approval of Board Procedures: Mayor Fowler said each commissioner has a packet of the
Town’s current Policies. He said “Suggested Rules of Procedures for City Councils”
published by the North Carolina School of Government has been the board’s guideline in the
past. He asked for a motion to accept the Town’s Policies. Commissioner Braly moved to
accept the Town’s existing Policies. Mayor Fowler asked for a motion to accept the
“Suggested Rules of Procedures for City Councils.” Commissioner Braly so moved. All
ayes.

Assignment of duties: Mayor Fowler reported he had discussed the duties with the new
commissioners. Mayor Fowler said Adam Garfinkel has agreed to remain as Mayor Pro Tem
and Cliff Braly has agreed to remain as Public Works Officer. He said the remaining jobs
are Public Safety and Finance. Kenny Campen has agreed to be the Public Safety Officer
and David Gaskins has agreed to be the Financial Officer. Commissioner Braly moved to
accept the assignments. All ayes.

Town Manager’s report: There were no new zoning applications. Town Manage asked
for approval to order town tags. Commissioner Braly moved to purchase the town tags. All
ayes.

Planning Board Report: Commissioner Garfinkel reported the Planning Board did
meet in December. He reported the planning board addressed an ordinance requiring
utility companies to notify the town of any work in the rights-of-way. He said they
would have something to recommend to the Board of Commissioners next month.

Commissioner Garfinkel reported the second thing they discussed was changing the
wording in Section 151.164 R-M Multi-Family Dwelling District (E) When there arc
two or more principal buildings on a commaon lot, which has single ownership, they
shall comply with the following requirements. Commissioner Garfinkel said Arlington
Place has asked to change the wording above from “single ownership” to “multiple
ownership.” He said Arlington Place wants small cottages on a shared lot the Planning
Board does not have an issue with this and recommends amending the wording.

Commissioner Garfinkel said he wants to present this to Becca Lang before formally
presenting it to the Commissioners.

12/10/2019 BOC meeting 2



Commissioner Garfinkel said the third item on their agenda was to consider a greenway
that would be a buffer zone between the golf course and residential property adjacent to
it. It was tabled for a future date.

Mayor Fowler suggested to the Planning Board to keep the utility ordinance simple so it
is easily understood and enforceable. Commissioner Braly asked they include a time
frame for the utility companies to let the town know when, what and where they will
bury cables.

Mayor Fowler said in discussing any type of greenway, that it would have to apply in
general {0 all developers for any new development. He said we cannot “spot™ zone.

Finance Report: Town Manager reported all income and expenditures were within
the budgeted ranges. The Town’s current assets as of November 30, 2019 are: First
Citizen's Bank Checking $8,360.89; First Citizen's MM $270,138.51; CressCom Bank’s
Savings $218,948.48; North Carolina Management Trust is $210,340.31; Petty Cash
$50.00. The town currently has CDs at First South Bank & Savings totaling
$231,056.75. Total assets for the Town are $963,678.07. Town Manager said the
board needs to move $8,000 from 402 Contingency Fund to 412 Donations in the
Budget Performance report. The prior board approved the donation but did not fund it
in the budget. Conunissioner Braly made a motion to move $8,000 from 402 to 412.
All ayes.

Town Manager reported a CD with CressCom Bank will mature December 20, 2019.
She asked for permission to roll it over at the best rate available. Commissioner
Gaskins so moved. All ayes.

Town projects; Commissioner Braly reported the issues with Country Club Drive
West culvert at Bennett Road. There is a state culvert under Bennett Road that is
connected to a brick box in the center of Country Club Drive West. DOT engineers and
Norman Sanderson will be brought in to access the problem. He said what he’d like is
to have the state cut their pipe off and the Town put a new culvert under Country Club
Drive West. But he said he was not confident the state will do that.

Commissioner Braly reported they are continuing to monitor the work done on Phillips
Drive at Mrs. Johnson’s property. He said the next area to tackle will be Hardison
Drive and Country Club Drive.

Commissioner Braly reported the remodeling in the Town Hall is progressing nicely.

Purchase of Minnesott Golf & Country Club property: Mayor Fowler said he had
sent to all of the commissioners a list of information and issues he thinks are or could
be a problem. He read this into the record and is made of part of the minutes by
reference and may be viewed at the Town Hall. Mayor Fowler said the issue before the
Board is what do we want to do. Do we as a board want to proceed with the purchase
and if we do, we need to engage our attorney to protect the Town’s interests. If the golf
club closes, we will need to decide what do we want to do with the property. Mayor
Fowler asked for input from the Commissioners. Commissioner Gaskins said we
definitely need to talk with our attorney. Commissioner Braly asked if we could get

12/10/2019 BOC meecting



information from the NC School of Government for some of the issues we’re concerned
about. Commissioner Garfinkel made a motion that all Commissioners be required vote
on all real property acquisitions. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler said time is an issue because we’ve been talking about this since January
of last year. After further discussion, Mayor Fowler asked for a motion continue
forward and to engage the Town's attorney and the SOG. Commissioner Braly so
moved. All ayes. Mayor Fowler said he would set up a meeting with Aaron Arnette,
the Town’s attorney and he asked the Town Manager to reach out to the School of
Government. He said he would keep the Commissioners informed. He also asked the
Commissioners send him any additional questions they have for the attorney.

Maintenance Man: Mayor Fowler reported that Larry Hackney, our maintenance man
for 20 years, is retiring due to doctor’s orders. Mayor Fowler asked for a motion for the
Town Manager to advertise for a part-time maintenance person to work with Larry &
Thomas. Mayor Fowler said Thomas Shealy will remain as an assistant.

Commissioner Braly so moved. All aves.

Ethics Training: Mayor Fowler reported all of the elected officials are required to have
Ethics Training by the State of NC. The School of Government has a 2-hour on-demand
webinar available at a cost of $150. There is a free training in New Bern January 29" if
anyone is interested. Mayor Fowler asked for a motion to purchase the webinar.
Commissioner Braly so moved. All ayes. '

Holidays: Town Manager asked that the Town Hall close early on Christmas Eve and not
reopen until Monday December 30%. Commissioner Garfinkel moved to close. All ayes.

There being no further business, Commissioner Braly moved to adjourn the regular meeting
at 8:10pm. All Ayes,

brca et

Donna Scott, Town Clerk

12/10/2019 BOC meeting



